CITY OF HANOVER
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
SEPTEMBER 25, 2023
OFFICIAL MINUTES

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance

Stan Kolasa called the September 25, 2023, Planning Commission Meeting to order at 7:00 pm. Members
present were Stan Kolasa, Jim Schendel, Dean Kuitunen, Gretchen Barrett, and John Ganfield. Also present
City Planner Cindy Nash, Council Liaison Mike Amery and Administrative Assistant Amy Biren. Many
guests were present

Approval of Agenda
MOTION by Schendel to approve the agenda, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Approval of Minutes from the July 24, 2023, Regular Meeting
MOTION by Schendel to approve the July 24, 2023, minutes, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Citizen’s Forum
None

Public Hearing
Variance and Conditional Use Permit at 825 Katydid Lane for an Accessory Building in the
Side Yard and Larger than Floor Area of Principal Building

Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:02 pm.

Nash explained that the Planning Commission had a conditional use permit (CUP) and variance for 825
Katydid for an accessory building located in the front yard of the home and larger than the principal
structure’s square footage. She pointed out the proposed building on the survey. Nash invited the applicant
to speak.

Mike Leadens, 825 Katydid and applicant, said that he had staked out other possibilities and the proposed
placement of the detached garage worked best with the existing driveway and established playground.

Ganfield asked Leadens what would be the purpose of the detached garage. Leadens responded it would
be for the storage of recreational vehicles and equipment. The attached garage was running out of storage
space.

Nash explained that the two items are connected, the variance and the CUP, and if one was approved or
denied, the other would follow suit. She continued with items to considered as were outlined in the memo
to the Planning Commission:

e Isthe request a reasonable use of the land?

e Is the plight of the landowner due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the
landowner?

o Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality?

e Economic considerations alone shall not constitute a practical difficulty if reasonable use for the
property exists under the terms of this chapter.

Nash stated that the proposed detached garage would be the largest in the neighborhood. She could
appreciate the fact that extending the existing driveway to the proposed building makes sense, but that is



by the owner’s choice. Continuing, Nash said that there are detached garages in the neighborhood that are
located to the front of the home, but the proposed building is quite a bit larger. Staff is recommending
denial of the application.

Nash said that all the findings need to be true and if not, then the Planning Commission cannot approve the
variance. If the Planning Commission does move to recommend approval, Nash has provided conditions
to be included.

Ganfield asked about the square footage of the neighboring detached garages. Nash used the aerial view
on the Wright County GIS website to provide estimates. The neighboring detached garages were in the
1300-1400 square foot ranges. Leadens pointed out one of the detached garages had a basement as well.

Barrett asked the front yard setback to the neighboring garage with the basement. Nash measured and said
it was roughly 113 feet. Nash continued saying that the ordinance states that an accessory building cannot
be to the front of the house. Accessory buildings are to be in the rear yard, but a CUP allows the location
to be in the side yard.

Ganfield asked that since the lean-to is 525 square feet, would that count towards the total square footage
of the building. Nash responded that it shares a roof with the building so it would be counted toward total
square footage.

Kuitunen asked about the locations of the septic sites. Leadens said the septic is located on the survey and
that he was worried about the distance required to the pipe as well as the contours of the land. Schendel
asked about an alternate septic site location and Leadens said he does not believe there is one. Nash said
that a structure needs to be at least 20 feet from a drainfield. She added that there does appear to be room
to move the building back as indicated by the septic area on the survey.

Kuitunen asked if there was any public comment. Tony Freund, 898 Katydid, stated he was Leadens’
neighbor and did not have an issue with the proposed garage. Freund also stated that if the garage was
moved back, fill would be needed.

Barrett said that she had driven to the property.
Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission at 7:16 pm.

Kolasa commented that he thought it would be less dirt work if the building was moved back further than
proposed. Leadens said he is concerned about where it looks best in relationship to the house.

Kolasa stated that accessory buildings are not allowed in the front yard. Kuitunen added that the Planning
Commission does not want to set a precedent by allowing an accessory in the front yard. He continued
saying that the Board has had to review applications similarly to this in the past and required the applicant
to move the building further back out of the front yard.

Nash suggested reducing the size of the proposed building and then it would be able to be pushed back to
align with the front of the house. This would negate the need for a variance.

Ganfield asked for the measurements from the front for the existing house compared to the proposed garage.
Nash indicated, per the survey, it was 110.7 feet and 91.8 feet respectively. Barret said the proposed
building would need to be aligned with the front corner of the house. Kuitunen added, if the proposed
building was pushed back.

Kolasa reiterated that the Planning Commission represents the ordinances.
Kuitunen said to the applicant that he does have the ability to move the proposed building back further.

Nash told the Planning Commission they need to make a recommendation first for the variance and then
for the CUP. Kuitunen asked what the next steps would be in the process and options. Nash outlined the
following options: The Planning Commission needs to make a recommendation, approval, or denial, on
both items and it would be sent to Council for the final decision; the applicant may want the Council to hear



it regardless of the recommendation by the Planning Commission; or the applicant may withdraw and
resubmit with a new survey.

MOTION

Kuitunen moved to send to Council the recommendation of denial of the variance for the location of the
proposed accessory structure at 825 Katydid, seconded by Schendel.

Motion carried unanimously.

MOTION

Kuitunen moved to send forward to Council and recommend approval of the conditional use permit related
to the size of the proposed accessory structure at 825 Katydid with the condition of resubmitted plans and
survey showing that the proposed structure is aligned with the front of the existing home along with the
conditions listed in the packet, seconded by Barret.

Motion carried unanimously.

Leadens thanked the Planning Commission.

Public Hearing
Comprehensive Plan Amendment, Rezoning, and Concept Plan at 999 Kalenda Lane NE

Kolasa closed the Planning Commission and opened the Public Hearing at 7:30 pm.

Kuitunen spoke to the audience informing them that the Planning Commission only received the packet on
Friday. Since part of this application is to rezone a current commercial district to a residential district, the
Planning Commission would like to discuss this with the EDA. The Board will take public comment tonight
and will pass it along to the EDA. The Planning Commission will most likely not make a recommendation
at tonight’s meeting.

Kolasa reminded the audience that he will call on those wishing to speak. Speakers need to go to the
podium. He asked that comments be brief.

Nash explained to the Planning Commission that there are several items before them related to the Schirmer
property located at 999 Kalenda Lane NE. First, a Comprehensive Plan amendment requesting a change
from a commercial property to a residential one. Second, the property would need to be rezoned. Third,
the applicant has provided a concept plan for a residential development and would like feedback.

Nash reminded the Board that in 2018, the Comprehensive Plan was revised and discussion occurred,
resulting in the area along the north side of Beebe Lake Road to be guided as commercial. This changed
the zoning and future land use of the properties. The Comprehensive Plan, zoning and future land use need
to work hand in hand.

Nash invited the applicant to present to the Planning Commission and audience. Art Plante, JP Brooks and
JPB Land, LLC, presented the information that was included in the packet. He explained that the property
was located both in Hanover and St. Micheal with a proposal for 197 lots of different product types and
sizes. The lot widths would vary between 40-65 foot wide and would meet the required two to four homes
per acre with an average of 3.75 homes. There would be wetlands and open spaces within the development.
The development entrance would be on Beebe Lake Road. Plante explained that the applicant is both the
developer and builder and that currently they are constructing Rivers Edge of Hanover. He explained that
changing the property to residential made sense as Hanover is running out of residential lots; the area
surrounding the property is residential with no commercial property near it; and the topography is more
suited to residential development than commercial. Water and sewer are accessible. Continuing, he
explained they will be offering a quality product that people can afford. The smaller lots will be detached
townhomes with a HOA. They will be duplicating the ramblers with basements or slab on grade homes



that are currently selling in Rivers Edge. Plante is requesting reduced side yard setbacks for the
development.

Claudia Pingree, 11711 Riverview Road NE, asked how will trees be preserved on the property. Plante
responded that there are not that many trees on the property and the City has landscaping requirements.

Chad Olson, 10470 Kalen Drive NE, explained he is concerned about the size of the proposed lots and they
are not keeping with the spirit of the Comprehensive Plan. He also stated that if the property was rezoned,
it would account for 50 percent of the commercially zoned properties in Hanover.

A resident from Greenfield stated he would like to see more of a country setting which is why he moved to
the area.

Steve Voss, 885 Katydid, expressed concern about water control. He showed where there is a dry pond on
his property and explained that it fills with water which comes up to the tree line. How will the water be
diverted in the development? He also showed where there is a drainage ditch and how it fills and comes
into his yard each spring. He would like to know the high-water level mark for the pond that is shown in
the development.

Matt Lee, 9840 Jasmine Avenue NE, stated that the side yard setbacks have been reduced by 50 percent
and does not seem safe from a firefighting aspect. He also indicated that there are still plenty of places to
build in Hanover and if it does become a residential development, it should not change from current
standards.

Pingree stated that senior housing is needed in Hanover and this proposed development is not it. The price
point would not be affordable to seniors or to first time home buyers.

Debbie Carron, 12860 83" Street, Otsego, explained that she is the daughter of Rita Lindenfelser who
resides at 10800 Beebe Lake Road next to the proposed development. She said that some of her questions
have already been answered. Carron said that the holding pond adjacent to her mother’s property is
concerning and would like to know where the water will flow from the pond. She would also like to know
where the turn lane will be located and how will the property be impacted if the plateau is removed.

Nash explained that the concept plan is intended to be very basic and serves the purpose in obtaining
feedback. It does not usually include specific details related to the questions asked tonight. Those details
are included later within the preliminary and final plats.

Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission at 8 pm.

Kuitunen stated that the Planning Commission had had a workshop with Council and the EDA when
deciding to guide this property as commercial during the Comprehensive Plan review. He said he not
willing to decide tonight without further input.

Barrett said that she attended the Minnesota Design Team visit earlier in the month and the findings from
the Team were posted to the City website today. She encouraged audience members to visit the website
and review the information. Barrett said that items that were mentioned during the visit included people
wanting larger lots and commercial offerings.

Kuitunen said that the Board discussed and worked a lot with the ordinances regarding setbacks, especially
with villa setbacks. He indicated that a five-foot side yard setback was troublesome.

Nash reminded the Board that with each land use application, the City has a timeframe to work within and
to make a decision. Barrett asked if it was 30 days. Nash replied that it was 120 days without an extension



from the applicant. Nash continued saying that the Planning Commission could table it and bring it to the
EDA for discussion and then it would come back to the Planning Commission in October. The Board asked
if they could have a workshop with the EDA and Council. Nash said she would have to consult with the
City Attorney to see if that is possible.

Kolasa asked what would happen if the Planning Commission denied the application. Nash said that it
would still go to Council with the recommendation of denial as Council is the deciding party with Planning
Commission acting as an advisory. Council could approve or deny it and ask for feedback from other
people.

Kuitunen reiterated the need for feedback from the EDA.
Plante stated he would prefer the Planning Commission table the application rather than deny it.

Barrett asked for the process if the item was tabled. Nash said that tabling it would bring it back to the
October Planning Commission meeting and the Board would make a recommendation to the Council at that
time.

MOTION

Barrett moved to table the Comprehensive Plan Amendment, Rezoning, and Concept Plan at 999 Kalenda
Lane NE until the next Planning Commission meeting and send it to the EDA for input, seconded by
Schendel.

Motion carried unanimously.

Schendel asked about having a workshop and Nash said that she would check into it. The Board asked
when the next EDA meeting is scheduled. Biren stated it had been moved to October 12" at 8 am. The
Board asked for a notice of potential quorum be posted and to have an email sent to the members as a
reminder of the EDA meeting.

Kolasa recessed the Planning Commission for a short break from 8:12 pm.
Kolasa brought the Planning Commission meeting back to order at 8:17 pm.

Unfinished Business
None

New Business
Final Plat for Rivers Edge Fifth Addition

Kolasa reminded the audience that the public hearings for the night have concluded. If an audience member
wished to speak, Kolasa stated he would decide whether to take the comment.

Nash stated that the final plat for the Rivers Edge of Hanover development is before the Planning
Commission tonight. Most of the infrastructure is slated for completion in 2024.

Barrett asked for confirmation that nothing had changed since the preliminary plat and previous final plats
had been approved. Nash confirmed nothing had changed.

MOTION

Kuitunen moved to send forward to the City Council the recommendation of approval of the Fifth Addition
final plat in Rivers Edge, seconded by Schendel.

Motion carried unanimously.



New Business
Concept Plan for the River Landing Commercial Park

Nash explained that the concept plan for the River Landing Commercial Park is for the property located
along the north side of CSAH 20 across from the River Landing development. This property is guided
commercial during the 2018 Comprehensive Plan Review and approved in 2019.

Nash wanted to bring to the attention of the Planning Commission that the applicant is aware the Shoreland
District is not shown on the concept plan and has been asked for a revised plan. There are certain
requirements withing the Shoreland District that need to be met. She is asking for the revision to be
submitted in time for the October Planning Commission meeting.

Kuitunen asked if the Shoreland requirements would make the lots smaller. Nash said not necessarily. The
Ordinary High Water Level would more than likely move closer and have more of an impact on the lots.
The impervious surface coverage percentage would also have an impact. She is also asking for an example
of the lots with a building and parking on it.

Kuitunen expressed concern with the little lots. Nash said that the lots are geared toward small business
owners. If a business needs more space, two lots could be purchased. The intent is not to have a strip mall.

Ryan Sunram, applicant, explained that he attended the Minnesota Design Team visit and received the
feedback of residents wanting to have smaller businesses available to them in town. He is targeting smaller
business and agreed with Nash about combining lots for a business if needed. He said it is easier to combine
a lot than to split one. Sunram said he is looking for comments and feedback, particularly items that could
be done differently.

An audience member asked about parking. Sunram said that parking is required. Nash also explained that
different amounts of parking are required based on the type of business. She added that the impervious
surface coverage percentage also needs to be met. Nash said that open green space needs to balance what
is located on the lots.

Doug Lee, 10798 River Road, asked about the setback from the Ordinary High Water Level. Nash stated
that there is a setback and the location of it needs to be determined.

Barrett requested a visual of the proposed business lot with parking along with the types of businesses
Sunram is looking for. She asked if the entrance to the commercial park is across from the River Landing
development. Nash replied yes, the entrance is across from it. Barret also asked if there was trail access
since that was a big component of the Minnesota Design Team visit feedback. Nash said yes, the trail is
proposed to be along the south side of CSAH 20.

Kuitunen commented on how people would walk to the businesses as walkability was also mentioned
during the Minnesota Design Team visit.

Ganfield asked Sunram if he has had any businesses interested in purchasing lots. Sunram said that people
have approached the city administrator more in general than specifically in his lots.

Ganfield stated that Lot 1 has a house right next to it. Sunram confirmed that and said that it is an acre lot
with trees as buffers.

Kolasa acknowledged Christina Kenney, 10818 River Road, to speak. Kenney stated that the house next
to Lot 1 is hers. She would like to know more about the tree barrier as well as the tree preservation that
will take place.



Kolasa acknowledged Mike Trullinger, 10778 River Road, to speak. Trullinger stated that there is only one
ingress and egress from the site and from a fire department and emergency services aspect, it is troublesome.
He would also like the speed lowered on the road since it would be 55 mph at the entrances to the businesses.

Kolasa acknowledge Kerry Barnard, 8484 10" Street NE, St. Michael, to speak. Barnard expressed concern
about the existing snowmobile trail and its future. He showed where the current snowmobile trails exist.
Barnard suggested having a corridor from CSAH 20 to the swamp for snowmaobilers to access businesses
and CSAH 19. He would also like to see lower curbs for the snowmobilers.

MOTION

Schendel moved to table the Concept Plan for the River Landing Commercial Park until updated plans are
provided for the October meeting, seconded by Kuitunen.

Motion carried unanimously.

Reports and Announcements

Biren updated the Board on the status of the pickle ball and sport court in Cardinal Park. Both
should be open soon.

Kuitunen announced that his term is up at the end of the year and would not be reapplying for his
seat. He said that if anyone in the audience is interested to please apply. Pingree thanked him for his
service on the Planning Commission and to the community.

Barrett gave a recap of the Minnesota Design Team visit. She explained that the team asked five
questions related to current and future aspects of Hanover. She thought it was very productive and there
were many viewpoints. Pingree agreed and mentioned that the yellow house on the corner of CSAHs 20
and 19 should be purchased and moved. Ganfield said that the team had mentioned that. Barrett urged
everyone to go to the website and see the findings from the visit.

Amery thanked all who attended the Minnesota Design Team visit. He said that Council received
an update on the CSAH 19 project at the last meeting. There is discussion regarding the path along CSAH
19 and where it should be located. Currently, it is located along the east side and there is a desire to have
a path along the west side. Also, the power lines will not be buried as part of the project as it is too costly.
Wright County is working on their right of way acquisition. The timeline has shifted and it is looking more
like 2025 rather than 2024.

Schendel said that the street lights at the intersection of CSAHs 20 and 19 are out. Biren said she
would report them.

Adjournment

MOTION by Schendel to adjourn, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Meeting adjourned at 8:46 pm.

ATTEST:

Amy L. Biren
Administrative Assistant



Amy Biren

===
From: Cindy Nash <cnash@collaborative-planning.com>
Sent: Friday, September 22, 2023 12:37 PM
To: Amy Biren
Cc: Jennifer Nash
Subject: FW: River Landing Commercial District
Hi Amy —

Below is an email that we’ve received on this proposed project.

Cindy Nash, AICP, EDFP
Collaborative Planning, LLC

Direct (763) 473-0569
Cell  (612)702-3845

PO Box 251, Medina, MN 55340

From: Matthew Linden <lindendm@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, September 22, 2023 11:41 AM

To: Cindy Nash <cnash@collaborative-planning.com>; Jennifer Nash <cityadmin@ci.hanover.mn.us>
Subject: River Landing Commercial District

Hello Cindy and Jennifer,

As a resident of Hanover, | wanted to reach out and give you my support for the River Landing Commercial District
proposal. Hanover is lacking in much needed infrastructure/business development and now is a great opportunity to
invest in our community.

I'm eager to learn more details on the type of businesses that will be built and how they will affect residents in the area.
Thank you for all the hard work you do!

Kind Regards,
Matthew Linden
29780 109th Ave N, Hanover



Amy Biren

From: Cindy Nash <cnash@collaborative-planning.com>

Sent: Monday, September 25, 2023 1:06 PM

To: Amy Biren

Cc: Jennifer Nash

Subject: FW: OPPOSED to Commercial Zoning on CR20 West of Cty 19

Hi Amy — please make a copy of this one for the PC as well.

Cindy Nash, AICP, EDFP
Collaborative Planning, LLC

Direct (763) 473-0569
Cell (612)702-3845

PO Box 251, Medina, MN 55340

From: jackie white <jaqwhite@comcast.net>

Sent: Monday, September 25, 2023 12:54 PM

To: Cindy Nash <cnash@collaborative-planning.com>; cityadmin@ci.hanover.mn.us
Subject: OPPOSED to Commercial Zoning on CR20 West of Cty 19

Hi Cindy and Jennifer,

| moved to Hanover 7 years ago, after 19 years in Corcoran. I've been sold on ex-urban living for a
long time. I've also become a passionate advocate for wildlife and protection of the planet we call
home.

One of the first things that happened after my move to Hanover was the destruction of the 150 year
old oaks at Settlers Park to make way for ball fields. | opposed that, voted against the mayoral and
council candidates who supported that, but had to stomach the loss of something irreplaceable. And
it has continued in that vain since. | have just heard of the proposed plan to lose even more trees
and wild space along CR20 across from the in-process development on the river for even more
homes. | am heart-sick at the loss of natural areas for all the wildlife we are blessed to see. No
better thrill than watching the bald eagles hunting along the Crow River!! THAT is what makes
Hanover (and Corcoran) different than places like Maple Grove and St Michael. We are the lucky
ones who've found a way to peacefully coexist with other species. And so close to the convenience
of more commercially developed cities. We have the best of both worlds!!

| am opposed to the rezoning of that strip of land to commercial and even more opposed to losing
more wild space to the new plans. Please register my comments at tonight's planning commission
meeting.

Now, if you ever have interest in promoting Hanover as a Monarch Butterfly haven, count me
in!! We've had the best year on our 5 acres hosting monarchs and watching our last chrysalis hatch

1



GiA,

— Exists

\

Le —mac

‘0Fd |.oot=.1 |')I"H'.L |?.Z'10‘D
| toomemo symeg) =g,

\
f\\

L
=

/

Concept Plan

,J4\‘ ) N
Py Wl A ‘_('\ \'\ .’_ % Sl
L L ) 2 s .l)»; 1
e P PORED =) s
'/."l;-’r—'-.. - ."'
- - ~

=

{

|

-
| i
ik
oo
7)

M~ Coun
(—Teawc

W oose
Rivee Beqena

o$$\\pl:z- fhoy
L won

Relocoted TTRAIG e
Comb s

(p

— OPTie | o

DUNTY ROAD Ng.. 20)

IVED

|




£ VLOSINNIW "SIAONVH % e
40 HIALY MOUD LV SYLSIA 3HL ANV SANVIHOIH JHL _‘o:% 20k NOGIQ) HRNITELG GHON RSBHYH
1

[4 LA - Cl [y —— Y]
133HS NV1d 31IS TIV4IAD 1334 W1 T8 Bukening-Bupoouiduz | _..
R =it

TUTZFEET VG VRS ON DN

THIAVD HOMWYY

SMR] Oy SIPUN JPSU|GUT JRUOJAL] FISUSTY AIND B LR
7 IR PUR LOISIAIRANS 320UIP A SBPUN J0 B AQ pasadeud
SIM Modau 15 UoREERIIS R Si WYL ANISS AGRX) |

[SIOSIUUIN O MNS 3D 10 i 3d NOLLYITIAdY 1vid AUVAINEIZSd

NOLLYCT Y LW d AHVNIWTERId

22-52-20
2e-97-50

SHOISIAGY | S3InasT

avo .

!

v /N
~ods sv9

¥ loino

B'168 = HAIY
UIALYM HOTH AUYNITHO

/

O
ﬂfWVV\VS 3
A0 N&A
P QO
)..,& \\.vo " z/wr
_

il J w.mufigézﬂ.
WD DS X —
)

W S
PAA RN ﬁz -

2 - -
i W
A\
A\
o I .E P
RN T
B
! 7 _
“dAL 'MOY .09 HULM
QYOY 2 LASQISIH WIN
T | N
sl

“dAL .§BNEW/
LSYONQD S /
-

e

~

1na O




	09-25-23 Draft Minutes
	09-25-23 PC Minutes Add

